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FISHER, BYRIALSEN & KREIZER, PLLC
291 Broadway, Suite 709

New York, NY 10007

{212) 962-0848

Attorneys for Plaintiff

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY
ROBERT CONNIZZO, COMPLAINT and JURY DEMAND
Plaintiff,
CIVIL ACTION

CITY OF PATERSON, PATERSON FIRE
DEPARTMENT, PATERSON OFFICE
OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT,
PATERSON OFFICE OF EMERGENCY
MANAGEMENT DIRECTOR GLENN
BROWN, PATERSON FIRE CHIEF
MICHAEL POSTERINO, PATERSON
FIRE DEPUTY CHIEF MICHAEL
FLEMING, PATERSON FIRE
BATTALION CHIEF THOMAS
BEHNKE, PATERSON FIRE
BATTALION CHIEF RYAN MURRAY,
PATERSON FIRE CHIEF OPERATOR
LETICIA HOWE, PATERSON FIRE
DISPATCHER KEISHA WESLEY,
PATERSON FIREFIGHTER JOHN
HOWE, ABC CORP. 1-10, ABC CORP
11-20, ABC CORP. 21-30, ABC CORP.
31-40, JOHN DOE 1-10, JOHN DOE 11-
20, JOHN DOE 21-30, JOHN DOE 31-40,
JOHN DOE 41-50, JOHN DOE 51-60,
JOHN DOE 61-70 and JOHN DOE 71-80
(said names being fictitious designations),
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COMPLAINT

NOW COMES Plaintiff, ROBERT CONNIZZO, by and through his attorneys
FISHER, BYRIALSEN & KREIZER, PLLC, and for a cause of action against defendants,

both jointly and severally, respectfully states as follows:

INTRODUCTION

L. This is an action for money damages brought pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1983, §
1985 and § 1988, and the Fourth and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution,
and under the laws of the State of New Jersey, against the City of Paterson, Paterson Fire
Department (“Paterson FD™), Paterson Office of Emergency Management (“Paterson OEM™),
Paterson Office of Emergency Management Director Glenn Brown (“Brown™), Paterson Fire
Police Chief Michael Posterino (“Posterino™), Paterson Fire Deputy Chief Michael Fleming
(“Fleming™), Paterson Fire Battalion Chief Thomas Behnke (“Behnke™), Paterson Fire Battalion
Chief Ryan Murray (“Murray™), Paterson Fire Chief Operator Leticia Howe (“Leticia Howe”),
Paterson Fire Dispatcher Keisha Wesley (“Wesley™), Paterson Firefighter John Howe (“John
Howe”), ABC Corp. 1-10, ABC Corp. 11-20, John Doe 1-10, John Doe 11-20, John Doe 21-30,
John Doe 31-40, John Doe 41-50, John Doe 51-60, John Doe 61-70 and John Doe 71-80. This
action is brought against the defendants herein in its/his/her/their personal and official capacities.

2. The City of Paterson, acting as a municipal corporation, has its principal business
address at 155 Market Street, Paterson New Jersey. The Paterson FD has its principal address at

48 Temple Street, Paterson, New Jersey. The Paterson OEM has its principal address at 60

Temple Street, Paterson, New Jersey.

sl

3. The individual defendants as officers/employees of the City of Paterson, Paterson

FD and/or the Paterson OEM, acting under color of state law and pursuant to their authority,
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violated plaintiff’s rights secured by the Civil Rights Act of 1871, 42 U.S.C. §§ 1981, 1983,
1985, 1988; by the United States Constitution, including its Fourth, Fifth, Eight and Fourteenth

Amendments and other federal law; and by the laws and Constitution of the State of New Jersey.

PARTIES

I. Atall times relevant herein, plaintiff Robert Connizzo was an employee of defendant
City of Paterson and the Paterson FD as a dispatcher.

2. Atall times relevant herein, the City of Paterson was a municipal corporation within the
State of New Jersey and the public employer of all individual defendants. Defendant City of
Paterson controls the operations and employees of the Paterson FD and the Paterson OEM.

3. Atall times relevant herein, the Paterson FD was and still is an entity within the City of
Paterson, duly formed under the laws of the City of Paterson and State of New Jersey.

4. Atall times relevant herein, the Paterson OEM was and still is an entity within the City of
Paterson duly formed under the laws of the City of Paterson and State of New Jersey.

5. Atall times relevant hereto, defendant Brown was and still is employed by defendant(s)
and controlled the plaintiff’s work environment and maintained direct and indirect control and
supervision over the plaintiff.

6. Atall times relevant hereto, defendant Posterino was and still is employed by
defendant(s) and controlled the plaintiff’s work environment and maintained direct and indirect
control and supervision over the plaintiff.

7. At all times relevant hereto, defendant Fleming, was and still is emploved by
defendant(s) and controlled the plaintiff’s work environment and maintained direct and indirect
control and supervision over the plaintiff.

8. At all times relevant hereto, defendant Behnke was and still is employed by defendant(s)

(8]
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and controlled the plaintiff’s work environment and rﬁaintained direct and indirect control and
supervision over the plaintiff.

9. At all times relevant hereto, defendant Murray was and still is employed by defendant(s)
and controlled the plaintiff’s work environment and maintained direct and indirect control and
supervision over the plaintiff.

10. At all times relevant hereto, defendant Leticia Howe was and still is employed by
defendant(s) and controlled the plaintiff’s work environment and maintained direct and indirect
control and supervision over the plaintiff.

11. At all times relevant hereto, defendant Wesley was and still is employed by defendant(s)
and was plaintiff’s co-worker and/or controlled the plaintiff’s work environment and maintained
direct and indirect control and supervision over the plaintiff.

12. At all times relevant hereto, defendant John Howe was and still is employed by
defendant(s) and was plaintiff’s co-worker and/or controlled the plaintiff’s work environment

and maintained direct and indirect control and supervision over the plaintiff. John Howe is also

the brother of Leticia Howe.

13. ABC CORP. 1-10, ABC CORP 11-20, ABC CORP. 21-30 and ABC CORP. 31-40
represent the fictitious and/or unknown entities that employed the plaintiff throughout his tenure
and/or at one time during his employment.

14. JOHN DOE 1-10, JOHN DOE 11-20, JOHN DOE 21-30, JOHN DOE 31-40, JOHN
DOE 41-50, JOHN DOE 51-60, JOHN DOE 61-70, JOHN DOE 71-80, JOHN DOE 81-90,
represent the fictitious and/or unknown individuals that supervised and/or participated in any

unlawful acts against the plaintiff.

15. At all times referred to in this complaint, employees of the public defendants who are
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referred to herein, were acting within the scope of their employment at the workplace during
working hours and/or under celor of law. Moreover, the public defendants ratified, embraced and
added to their conduct.

16. All individual defendants are sued in their official and personal capacities.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

12. Each and all of the acts of defendants were performed under the color and
pretense of the constitutions, statutes, ordinances, regulations, customs and usages of the United
States of America, the State of New Jersey, the County of Passaic and the City of Paterson, and
under the authority of their office as officers and/or representatives for the City of Paterson.

13. The incident(s) which give rise to this cause of action occurred within this
Jurisdiction and within two years of the filing of the Complaint.

14, Venue is proper in this venue pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391, as all the defendants
are residents of this district and/or all the acts or omissions which give rise to this cause of action
occurred within this district.

15, Jurisdiction is proper pursuant to federal question jurisdiction, 28 U.S.C. § 1331,
28 US.C. § 1343(2)(3)(4) and 42 U.S.C. § 1983. Plaintiff further invokes the pendent and

supplemental jurisdiction of the Court to hear and decide claims arising under state law pursuant

to 28 U.S.C. § 1367.

16.  Plaintiff avers that defendants do not have immunity for violating the civil rights

of citizens.
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FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS COMMON TO ALL COUNTS

17. Plaintiff was employed by the public defendant(s) from February 13, 2006 until he
received notice of his improper and illegal termination, dated June 19, 2013.

18. Throughout the course of his employment plaintiff performed his job duties as a
dispatcher in an exemplary fashion.

19. On November 8, 2011, plaintiff arrived at work and was immediately ordered by his
supervisor, defendant Behnke, to listen to calls that came into dispatch from the day before,
November 7, 2011. Plaintiff was instructed to do so in order to find a medical call that had come
through to dispatch but was not handled properly.

20. While doing what he was ordered to do, plaintiff came upon a call in the dispatch system
between defendant Leticia Howe and Paterson Firefighter Kippy Smith. During said call, Howe
and Smith could be heard planning illegal activity, including the use of narcotics, and also
planning a deliberate violation of the City of Paterson and/or the Paterson FID’s sick leave policy.

21. At the end of his shift, plaintiff, feeling obligated to report the call he had heard as a
matter of public safety, informed his supervisor, defendant Murray, of the call he
heard between defendant Leticia Howe and Firefighter Smith. Murray instructed plaintiff to go
home and that he would “be in touch” regarding said call.

22. On November 9, 2011, while plaintiff was on his scheduled day off, he was contacted by
defendant Murray. Defendant Murray informed plaintiff that he listened to the subject call with
defendant Fleming. Plaintiff was informed that said call would be investigated and defendant
Murray requested that plaintiff “write up” the incident in order to initiate the investigation.
Plaintiff was given no time frame within which to “write up” said incident.

23. On November 13, 2011, again while plaintiff was on his scheduled day off, plaintiff was
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contacted via telephone and text message by defendant Murray. Defendant Murray indicated that
he must “write up” said incident that day and that it “was an order”. Upon receiving said order,
plaintiff drove to the Paterson FD Firehouse and prepared two reports; leaving them where
defendant Murray instructed.

24. Within days of reporting said call and subsequently generating said reports at defendant
Murray’s request, plaintiff became the subject of significant and egregious retaliatory behavior.
Said behavior included but was not limited to being called a “fucking rat”, a “piece of shit”,
“garbage”, being told “snitches get stitches” and being called a “faggot”, among other
defamatory remarks. Said behavior was perpetrated by defendant Leticia Howe, defendant
Wesley and a number of Paterson Firefighters. Additionally, said behavior was often perpetrated
in the presence of defendant Murray, plaintiff’s supervisor, who did nothing to stop it.

25. As said retaliatory behavior continued, plaintiff made multiple complaints to his
supervisors, defendants Murray and Behnke included, who indicated they would address same,
but never did.

26. After approximately one month of said continuing daily retaliatory behavior, in mid
December, 2011, plaintiff approached defendant Murray requesting a shift transfer so he would
not have to work with defendants Leticia Howe and Wesley, who were two of the main culprits
in said retaliation. After plaintiff indicated that he would put said shift transfer request in writing
to make it official, defendant Murray instructed him not to and that he would find someone to do
“a mutual tour swap”. While plaintiff honored defendant Murray’s request, Murray did not find a
transfer for plaintiff for a significant period of time; and said retaliatory behavior continued.

27. Also in mid-December, 2011, plaintiff was called into a meeting with defendant Fleming.
Defendant Ileming advised plaintiff that he had listened to the subject call with defendant

Posterino. Fleming further advised that “nothing would come of it” and that defendant Posterino
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was “pissed” at plaintiff for reporting said illegal and violative activity and for writing the
report(s) that defendant Murray had ordered him to write.

28. Throughout the rest of December, 2011 and January, 2012, said retaliatory behavior
continued. Plaintiff continued to complain of same to defendants Murray and Behnke who never
addressed the issue. He also continued to inguire as to his requested transfer, which did not come
through.

29. On January 18, 2012, plaintiff approached defendant Murray in his office. He
advised that he could no longer take the abuse that he was receiving; that he was being retaliated
against for lawfully reporting wrongdoing; and that he did not do anything wrong. Plaintiff
advised that if said behavior continued to be unaddressed, he would do what he had to do in
order protect his legal interests.

30. On January 20, 2012, while plaintiff was on his scheduled day off, he was contacted by
defendant Murray and advised that he was being transferred to a different shift. He was further
advised not to come to work until the afternoon of January 22, 2012.

31. On January 21, 2012 at 12:15 am. two Little Falls Police Officers came to plaintiff’s
home. Said officers advised that the Little Falls Police Department received a call from
member(s) of the Paterson FD who indicated that plaintiff was suicidal and/or that he was a
danger to himself or others. After plaintiff and his parents assured the officers of the absurdity of
said report, the officers left plaintiff’s home.

32. On January 21, 2012 at approximately 10:00 a.m., plaintiff spoke with defendant Fleming
about the Little Falls Police Officers coming to plaintiff’s home earlier that morning. Defendant
Fleming advised that he notified the Little Falls Police Department because defendants Howe
and Wesley, the very individuals that had been the main culprits in retaliating against plaintiff, of

which defendants and especially Fleming were aware, had reported that plaintiff was suicidal and
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that plaintiff was a danger to himself and others. Upon information and belief, said false report
by defendants Howe and Wesley and the reporting of same by defendant Fleming to the Little
Falls Police Department was contrived to cast doubt on the veracity of plaintiff’s valid
complaints of continued retaliation.

33. Despite defendants being aware of defendants Howe and Wesley’s retaliation against
plaintiff, and despite plaintiff’s assurances that any reports against him were false and constituted
further retaliation, plaintiff was placed on paid administrative leave until further notice effective
January 21, 2012.

34. After being notified of his paid administrative leave, plaintiff repeatedly asked for
documentation of same and also documentation of said allegations by defendants Howe and
Wesley. However, all such requests for documentation were ignored.

35. After being placed on paid administrative leave, plaintiff contacted defendant Fleming on
a weekly basis as to his return to work.

36. Ultimately, on March 16, 2012, plaintiff was called into a meeting with defendant
Posterino, defendant Fleming and Paterson Fire Deputy Chief Hancock. Plaintiff was advised
that he was “cleared of all charges” (despite never being charged with anything) and that there
was “no criminal activity discovered on [plaintiff’s] part” (despite never being accused of
anything). Plaintiff was further advised that he should not have reported the call between
defendant Leticia Howe and Firefighter Kippy Smith; and advised that he could come back to
work the next day, March 17, 2012. He was not required to appear at a Fitness for Duty
evaluation or meet any other prerequisites prior to returning to work.

37. Immediately after plaintiff returned to work from his administrative leave, the
aforementioned retaliatory behavior resumed. Again, despite plaintiff’s complaints of same to his

supervisor(s), the retaliation again went unaddressed.
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38. In addition to the above described retaliatory behavior, in mid to late March, 2012, while
plaintiff was leaving work after one of his shifts, he was accosted, assaulted and battered by a
group of Paterson Firefighters including defendant John Howe. More specifically, defendant
John Howe and the other firefighters approached plaintiff from behind, slammed him up against
a wall and frisked him as if he was a police suspect. They also dumped the items of plaintiff’s
bag out on the ground.

39. On June 18, 2012, after reporting to work, plaintiff realized that he had forgotten his cell
phone charger at home. Because there was more than enough coverage at dispatch that day,
plaintiff asked his supervisor, Chief Operator Joanne Stevenson, if it was all right if plaintiff
went home to retrieve his charger. Stevenson indicated that it was fine with her and to just
confirm that it was all right with defendant Behnke. Defendant Behnke approved and plaintiff
left dispatch to retrieve his charger. When plaintiff was leaving, he noticed defendant Brown in
front of the Firehouse with 4-6 individuals around him. As plaintiff pulled out of the parking lot
in his car, he made eye contact with defendant Brown who subsequently flipped the right side of
his suit jacket, exposed a handgun on his right hip and placed his right hand on the butt of the
handgun as if he was going to draw it against plaintiff.

40. Plaintiff immediately felt threatened and drove home. Upon arriving at home, he
contacted Stevenson and requested to use his lunch break in order to calm down; which was
approved.

41. Plaintiff subsequently returned to work and advised Stevenson and defendant Behnke of
what had occurred involving defendant Brown. Plaintiff was then told by defendants Behnke and

Fleming to write a report as to what had transpired, which he did. He was then instructed to go
home and not return to work until further notice.

42. Plaintiff was again placed on administrative leave without any explanation,

10




Case 2:13-cv-04886-ES-MAH Document 1 Filed 08/13/13 Page 13 of 36 PagelD: 13

receiving no documentation and without any indication as to when he might return to work.

43. In fact, plaintiff did not receive any notice from defendants until September of 2012, after
defendants had been notified that plaintiff had retained counsel. Defendants requested that
plaintiff appear for an investigatory interview with counsel for defendants; which plaintiff did on
September 21, 2012 and again on October §, 2012.

44. Only after plaintiff retained counsel and appeared for said investigatory interviews did
plaintiff, on October 20, 2012, receive a letter, dated October 17, 2012, from defendants
indicating that he had been scheduled to undergo a “Fitness for Duty” evaluation.

45. Plaintiff appeared for said evaluation on December 28, 2012 and subsequently was
required to release his psychiatric and other health records; which he did.

46. Thereafter, plaintiff was certified as “Fit for Duty” and advised by defendant Fleming in
late March, 2013, that he was to return to work on March 31, 2013. During said conversation,
plaintiff indicated that he would like to be re-trained on the dispatch system; at no time did
plaintiff advise that he would not return to work without said retraining or that he was unable to
perform his work duties. Defendant Fleming then advised plaintiff not to return to work on
March 31, 2013 and await further instructions as to said re-training.

47. Plaintiff did not hear from defendants until June 19, 2013 when he was served by
defendants with a Preliminary Notice of Disciplinary Action charging him with “Inability to
Perform Duties” and calling for his termination.

48. Plamtiff, through counsel, immediately requested a hearing and discovery related to his
termination. However, all such requests have been completely ignored.

49. Upon information and belief, said Notice of Disciplinary Action is nothing more than
pre-textual and in retaliation against plaintiff for raising an issue involving department

misconduct and public safety.

11
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50. Upon further information and belief, defendants have misused personne] policies
selectively for their own means to quiet a whistleblower by constantly placing him on
administrative leave without explanation and disciplining plaintiff to create the appearance of
legitimate reasons for his discharge. Furthermore, said actions of defendants are a violation of
plaintiff’s due process rights and directly effect his property rights.

51. Defendants’ actions and inactions were/are so intolerable that they resulted in plaintiff
suffering a specific ailment and/or plaintiff taking action to seek medical treatment. In addition,
the plaintiff suffered and continues to suffer psychological stress and significant economic
damages from the aforementioned actions of all defendants named herein.

40. As a direct and proximate result of said acts of the Defendants, the plaintiff
suffered the following injuries and damages:
a. Violation of his constitutional rights under the Fourth and Fourteenth
Amendments to the United States Constitution and 42 U.S.C. § 1983, §

1985 and § 1988;

b. Violation of his rights under state law and the New Jersey State
Constitution.

a. Emotional trauma and suffering;

b. Pain and suffering reasonably likely to occur in the future;

c. Mental anguish;

d. Humiliation and embarrassment;

e. Loss of Sleep;
f. Lost Wages;
g Medical Expenses;

h. Economic Loss.

12
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FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF:
DEPRIVATION OF FEDERAL CIVIL RIGHTS

42.  Plaintiff repeats and reiterates the allegations set forth in the foregoing paragraphs
with the same force and effect as though fully stated herein.

43, All of the aforementioned acts of Defendants, their agents, servants, and
employees were carried out under color of state law.

44.  All of the aforementioned acts deprived plaintiff of the rights, privileges, and
immunities guaranteed citizens of the United States by the Fourth, Fifth, Eighth, and Fourteenth
Amendments to the Constitution of the United States and in violation of 42 U.S.C. § 1983.

45.  The acts complained of were carried out by the Defendants in their capacities as
officers, employees and/or representatives of defendant City of Paterson, with the entire actual
and/or apparent authority attendant thereto.

46.  The acts complained of were carried out by the Defendants in their capacities as
officers, employees and/or representatives of defendant City of Paterson, pursuant to the
customs, usages, practices, procedures, and rules of the City of Paterson, Paterson Fire
Department and Paterson OEM, all under the supervision of ranking officers and/or officials of
said departments.

47.  Defendants, collectively and individually, while acting under color of state law,
engaged in conduct which constituted a custom, usage, practice, procedure, or rule of his/her
respective municipality/authority, which is forbidden by the Constitution of the United States.

48. By these actions, these Defendants have deprived Plaintiff of rights secured by the
Fourth, Fifth, Eighth, and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution, in violation
of 42 U.S.C. § 1983, for which the Defendants are individually and jointly liable.

WHEREFORE, the plaintiff, requests this Court:
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a. Award compensatory damages to plaintiff against the defendants in the
amount of $5 million, jointly and severally;

b. Award punitive damages in such an amount as the jury may determine is
sufficient to punish the defendants for and deter others from committing
the constitutional violations alleged herein.

c. Award reasonable attorney’s fees, costs and expenses to plaintiff pursuant
to 42 U.S.C. § 1988 and other federal and state laws; and

d. Award such other and further relief as this court may deem just and

proper.

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF:
CONSPIRACY TO DEPRIVE OF FEDERAL CIVIL RIGHTS

49.  Plaintiff repeats and reiterates the allegations set forth in the foregoing paragraphs
with the same force and effect as though fully stated herein.

50.  Defendants engaged in a joint venture, conspired together, and had an agreement,
to act in concert to commit the unlawful acts described herein for purpose of inflicting a
constitutional injury and/or wrong against plaintiff and did in fact commit an overt act
proximately causing plaintiff to suffer damages.

51. Specifically, defendants agreed to directly commit the constitutional injuries
discussed herein sharing conspiratorial objectives to deprive plaintiff of his constitutional rights.

52. As a result of the defendants’ conspiracy, plaintiff suffered damages as aforesaid.

WHEREFORE, the plaintiff, requests this Court:

a. Award compensatory damages to plaintiff against the defendants in the

amount of $5 million, jointly and severally;
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b. Award punitive damages in such an amount as the jury may determine is
sufficient to punish the defendants for and deter others from committing
the constitutional violations alleged herein.

c. Award reasonable attorney’s fees, costs and expenses to plaintiff pursuant
to 42 U.S.C. § 1988 and other federal and state laws; and

d. Award such other and further relief as this court may deem just and

proper.

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF:
MUNICIPAL LIABILITY

73. Plaintiff repeats and reiterates the allegations set forth in the foregoing
paragraphs with the same force and effect as though fully stated herein.

74.  Defendants retaliated against plaintiff, placed him on administrative leave and
terminated him, notwithstanding their knowledge that said actions would jeopardize Plaintiff’s
liberty, well-being and constitutional rights.

75, 'The acts complained of were carried out by the Defendants in their capacities as
officers, employees, representatives and/or officials, with the entire actual and/or apparent
authority attendant thereto.

76.  The acts complained of were carried out by the Defendants in their capacities as
Officers, employees, representatives and/or officials pursuant to the customs, policies, usages,
practices, procedures, and rules of the City of Paterson, Paterson FD and Paterson OEM, all
under the supervision of ranking officers and/or officials of said departments.

77. The customs, policies, usages, practices, procedures, and rules of City of
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Paterson, Paterson FD and Paterson OEM included, but were not limited to, retaliating against
plaintiff, placing him on administrative leave and terminating him without due process or just
cause.

78. The foregoing customs, policies, usages, practices, procedures, and rule of
City of Paterson, Paterson FD and Paterson OEM constituted deliberate indifference to the
safety, well-being, and constitutional rights of Plaintiff.

79.  The foregoing customs, policies, usages, practices, procedures, and rule of the
City of Paterson, Paterson FD and Paterson OEM were the proximate cause of the constitutional
violations suffered by Plaintiff as alleged herein.

80. The foregoing customs, policies, usages, practices, procedures, and rule of the
City of Paterson, Paterson FD) and Paterson OEM were the moving force behind the
constitutional violations suffered by Plaintiff as alleged herein.

81.  Defendants, collectively and individually, while acting under color of state law,
were directly and actively involved in violating the constitutional rights of Plaintiff.

82.  Defendants, collectively and individually, while acting under color of state law,
acquiesced in a pattern of unconstitutional conduct by subordinate police officers and were
directly responsible for the violation of Plaintiff’s constitutional rights.

83.  Defendant City of Paterson, as municipal policymaker in the training and
supervision of defendants officers, employees, representatives and/or officials, has pursued a
policy and custom of deliberate indifference to the rights of persons in their domain who suffer
violations of their freedom from the excessive use of force and unreasonable force and freedom
from deprivation of Liberty without Due process of law in violation of the Fourth, Fifth, Eighth,
and Fourteenth Amendments to the Constitution of the United States and 42 U.S.C. § 1983, and

the Constitution and laws of the State of New Jersey.
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84.  All of the foregoing acts by Defendants deprived Plaintiff of federally protected

rights, including, but not limited to, the right:
a. Not to be deprived of liberty without due process of law;
b. To be free from unreasonable search and seizure under the Fourth and

Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution;

c. To be protected against violations of his civil and constitutional rights;
d. Not to have cruel and unusual punishment imposed upon him; and
e. To receive equal protection under the law.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment against the defendants named herein jointly
and severally, on the sixth count of this complaint as follows:

a. Award compensatory damages to plaintiff against the defendants in the
amount of $5 million, jointly and severally;

b. Awarding punitive damages in such an amount that the jury may
determine 1s sufficient to punish the defendants for and deter others from
committing the torts violations alleged herein;

c. Awarding reimbursement of litigation expenses, including reasonable
attorney’s fees, expert fees and other costs of suit; and

d. Award such other and further relief as this court may deem just and

proper.

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
DEPRIVATION OF CIVIL RIGHTS UNDER N.J.S.A. 10:6-2

85.  Plaintiff repeats and reiterates the allegations set forth in the foregoing paragraphs

with the same force and effect as though fully stated herein.
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86.  The above acts constitute violations of both federal and state constitutional rights
and nights secured by the law of the State of New Jersey and N.J.S.A. 10:6-2.

87.  All defendants, at the time of the subject incident, were acting under the color of
law.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment against the defendants named herein jointly
and severally, on the seventh count of this complaint as follows:

a. Award compensatory damages to plaintiff against the defendants in the
amount of $5 million, jointly and severally;

b. Awarding punitive damages in such an amount that the jury may
determine is sufficient to punish the defendants for and deter others from
committing the torts violations alleged herein;

c. Awarding reimbursement of litigation expenses, including reasonable
attorney’s fees, expert fees and other costs of suit; and

d. Award such other and further relief as this court may deem just and
proper.

FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
CONSCIENTOUS EMPLOYEE PROTECTION ACT (“CEPA™)

52. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein the above paragraphs.

53. Under New Jersey Law, an employer may not retaliate against an employee because the
employee discloses. ..to a supervisor...an activity, policy or practice of the employer... that the
employee has reason to believe is in violation of the law rule or regulation pursuant to law...”
NULS.A. 34:19-3(a)(1).

54. Further retaliatory actions that are not permitted where the employee objects or refuses to
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participate in an activity that she reasonably believes is in violation of law, rule or regulation; it
is fraudulent or criminal; or is incompatible with clear mandate of policy concerning the public
health, safety or welfare. N.J.S.A. 34:19-3(c)}(1)-(3)

55. As noted above, plaintiff had reasonable beliefs that members of his department(s) were
violating state law and/or it was incompatible with the clear mandate of public policy regarding
public health, safety or welfare.

56. After raising said issues through the proper chain of command, plaintiff was ignored,
transferred, subjected to harassment and subjected to a hostile work environment until he was
ultimately terminated.

57. As a proximate result of defendants’ retaliatory actions against plaintiff, he has suffered

irreparable harm.
WHEREFORE, plaintiff demand judgment against the defendants named herein jointly

and severally on the Second Count of this Complaint as follows:

a. for an order awarding pecuniary damages, together with prejudgment interest at
the highest legal rate;

b. for an order awarding damages for pain and suffering, together with prejudgment
interest at the highest legal rate;

¢. foran order awarding compensatory damages in the amount of $5 million, jointly
and severally, including but not limited to back pay and front pay together with prejudgment
interest at the highest legal rate;

d. for an order awarding punitive, exemplary and/or special damages;

e. for an order awarding reimbursement of litigation expenses, including but not

limited to reasonable attorney’s fees, expert fees and other costs of suit; and

f. for an order awarding such other and further relief as this Court may deem
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equitable and just.

SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
WRONGFUL DISCHARGE IN VIOLATION OF A CLEAR MANDATE OF PUBLIC
POLICY

58. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein the above paragraphs.

59. The actions of defendants herein in causing the termination of plaintiff’s employment,
constituted wrongful and illegal retaliation for plaintiff’s disclosure of the aforementioned
wrongful and/or illegal conduct.

60. Said wrongful discharge is contrary to the clear mandate of the public policies of this

State and is thus actionable pursuant to the doctrine propounded in Pierce v. Qrtho

Pharmaceutical Corp., 84 N.J. 58 (1980).
61. As a direct and proximate result of the wrongful actions of defendants, plaintiff sustained
legal injury and pecuniary loss.
WHEREFORE, plaintiff demand judgment against the defendants named herein jointly
and severally on the Third Count of this Complaint as follows:

a. for an order awarding pecuniary damages, together with prejudgment interest at

the highest legal rate;

b. for an order awarding damages for pain and suffering, together with prejudgment
interest at the highest legal rate;

c. foran order awarding compensatory damages in the amount of $5 million, jointly

and severally, including but not limited to back pay and front pay together with prejudgment

interest at the highest legal rate;
d. for an order awarding punitive, exemplary and/or special damages;

e. for an order awarding reimbursement of litigation expenses, including but not
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limited to reasonable attorney’s fees, expert fees and other costs of suit; and
f. for an order awarding such other and further relief as this Court may deem

equitable and just.

SEVENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
VIOLATION OF NEW JERSEY CIVIL RIGHTS ACT

62. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein the above paragraphs.
63. Plaintiff as a Paterson FD dispatcher has a New Jersey state constitutionally protected
right to continued public employment under the New Jersey Constitution, Art. §1, in accordance

with Matter of Carberry, 114 N.J. 574 (1989).

64. Defendants Brown, Posterino, Fleming, Murray, Behke and/or Leticia Howe were
decision makers and/or policy makers who possessed authority to establish policy with respect to
the municipal entity defendants and were also directly responsible for the efficiency and routine
day to day operations of the municipal entity defendants and had the authority to

a. Administer and enforce rules and regulations and special emergency directives for
the disposition of discipline of employees and personnel;

b. Have, exercise and discharge the functions, powers and duties of the municipal
entity defendants; and

¢. Delegate such of their authority as deemed necessary for the efficient operation of
the municipal entity defendants to be exercised under their direction and
supervision.

65. Defendants, in executing and authorizing the filing and service of disciplinary charges
against the plaintiff, acted under color of law, and subjected plaintiff to the deprivation of his
rights, privileges or immunities as secured by the New Jersey Constitution , Art. 1, 6, 18

and/or New Jersey law.
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66. Defendants violated plaintiff’s New Jersey Constitutional rights in that defendants, acting
under color of state law, denied plaintiff of the privileges and immunities secured to him by the
New Jersey Constitution , Art. 19 1, 6 and 18.

67. Defendants actions were to penalized and retaliate against plaintiff.

68. As a direct and proximate cause of defendants’ actions, plaintiff has suffered and
continues to suffer loss of earnings and other employment benefits, severe mental, physical and
emotional distress, stress, humiliation, pain, damage to reputation and harm to his career
development.

WHEREFORE, plaintiff demands judgment against the defendants named herein jointly

and severally on the Fourth Count of this Complaint as follows:

a. for an order awarding pecuniary damages, together with prejudgment interest at
the highest legal rate;

b. for an order awarding damages for pain and suffering, together with prejudgment
interest at the highest legal rate;

¢. for an order awarding compensatory damages in the amount of $5 million, jointly
and severally, including but not limited to back
pay and front pay together with prejudgment interest at the highest legal rate;

d. for an order awarding punitive, exemplary and/or special damages;

e. for an order awarding reimbursement of litigation expenses, including but not
limited to reasonable attorney’s fees, expert fees and other costs of suit; and

f.  for an order awarding such other and further relief as this Court may deem

equitable and just.

EIGHTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS
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69. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein the above paragraphs.

70. The defendants conduct and actions as set forth above were extreme, outrageous and
uncommon.

71. As a direct and proximate cause of the actions of defendant, plaintiff has suffered mental
anguish, physical discomfort, pain and suffering, shame and embarrassment and/or aggravation
of a previously existing mental or emotional condition. Furthermore, plaintiff has suffered lost
wages, a diminished capacity to earn a living and a diminished capacity to enjoy her life.
Moreover, plaintiff has and/or may be required to incur expenses for medical, psychiatric and/or
psychological counseling and care. Plaintiff’s damages have been experienced in the past and
they will continue in the future.

WHEREFORE, plaintiff demand judgment against the defendants named herein jointly and
severally on the Fifth Count of this Complaint as follows:

a. for an order awarding pecuniary damages, together with prejudgment interest at
the highest legal rate;

b. for an order awarding damages for pain and suffering, together with prejudgment
interest at the highest legal rate;

c. for an order awarding compensatory damages in the amount of $5 million, jointly
and severally, including but not limited to back pay and front pay together with prejudgment
interest at the highest legal rate;

d. for an order awarding punitive, exemplary and/or special damages;

e. foran order awarding reimbursement of litigation expenses, including but not
limited to reasonable attorney’s fees, expert fees and other costs of suit; and

f. for an order awarding such other and further relief as this Court may deem

equitable and just.
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NINTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
NEGLIGENT INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS

72. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein the above paragraphs.

73. As aresult of their negligence, defendants’ conduct and actions as set forth above were
extreme, outrageous and uncommon.

74. As a direct and proximate cause of the actions of defendant, plaintiff has suffered mental
anguish, physical discomfort, pain and suffering, shame and embarrassment and/or aggravation
of a previously existing mental or emotional condition. Furthermore, plaintiff has suffered lost
wages, a diminished capacity to earn a living and a diminished capacity to enjoy her life.
Moreover, plaintiff has and/or may be required to incur expenses for medical, psychiatric and/or
psychological counseling and care. Plaintiff’s damages have been experienced in the past and
they will continue in the future.

WHEREFORE, plaintiff demand judgment against the defendants named herein jointly and
severally on the Sixth Count of this Complaint as follows:

a. for an order awarding pecuniary damages, together with prejudgment interest at
the highest legal rate;

b. for an order awarding damages for pain and suffering, together with prejudgment
interest at the highest legal rate;

c. for an order awarding compensatory damages in the amount of $5 million, jointly
and severally, including but not limited to back pay and front pay together with prejudgment
interest at the highest legal rate;

d. for an order awarding punitive, exemplary and/or special damages;

e. for an order awarding reimbursement of litigation expenses, including but not
limited to reasonable attorney’s fees, expert fees and other costs of suit; and

f. for an order awarding such other and further relief as this Court may deem
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equitable and just.

TENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
INVASION OF PRIVACY

75. Plaintiff realieges and incorporates herein the above paragraphs.

76. The actions of defendants give rise to the common law claim of Invasion of Privacy.

77. As a direct and proximate cause of the actions of defendant, plaintiff has suffered mental
anguish, physical discomfort, pain and suffering, shame and embarrassment and/or aggravation
of a previously existing mental or emotional condition. Furthermore, plaintiff has suffered lost
wages, a diminished capacity to earn a living and a diminished capacity to enjoy her life.
Moreover, plaintiff has and/or may be required to incur expenses for medical, psychiatric and/or
psychological counseling and care. Plaintiff’s damages have been experienced in the past and
they will continue in the future.

WHEREFORE, plaintiff demand judgment against the defendants named herein jointly and

severally on the Seventh Count of this Complaint as follows:

a. for an order awarding pecuniary damages, together with prejudgment interest at
the highest legal rate;

b. for an order awarding damages for pain and suffering, together with prejudgment
interest at the highest legal rate;

¢. for an order awarding compensatory damages in the amount of $5 million, jointly
and severally, including but not limited to back pay and front pay together with prejudgment
interest at the highest legal rate;

d. for an order awarding punitive, exemplary and/or special damages;

¢. for an order awarding reimbursement of litigation expenses, including but not

limited to reasonable attorney’s fees, expert fees and other costs of suit; and
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f. for an order awarding such other and further relief as this Court may deem

equitable and just.

ELEVENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
NEGLIGENCE

78. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein the above paragraphs.

79. Defendants were negligent, careless and reckless by failing to implement sufficient
policies against retaliation, and/or hostile work environment in the workplace and establish
monitoring mechanisms to assure that an employee would be free from harassment in the
workplace.

80. As a result of the defendants actions and/or inactions, plaintiff was caused to and
continues to be caused to suffer damages.

WHEREFORE, plaintiff demand judgment against the defendants named herein jointly and

severally on the Eighth Count of this Complaint as follows:

a. for an order awarding pecuniary damages, together with prejudgment interest at
the highest legal rate;

b. for an order awarding damages for pain and suffering, together with prejudgment
interest at the highest legal rate;

¢. for an order awarding compensatory damages in the amount of $5 million, jointly
and severally, including but not limited to back pay and front pay together with prejudgment
interest at the highest legal rate;

d. for an order awarding punitive, exemplary and/or special damages;

e. for an order awarding reimbursement of litigation expenses, including but not
limited to reasonable attorney’s fees, expert fees and other costs of suit; and

f. for an order awarding such other and further relief as this Court may deem
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equitable and just,

TWELFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
BREACH OF CONTRACT

81. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein the above paragraphs.

82. Plainitff entered into a contract of employment with defendants. The contract was on in
which there was a clear and definite promise of employment by the employer made with the
expectation that the plaintiff would rely thereon. The terms of said contract were memorialized
through the employee handbook and/or New Jersey Statute.

83. Plaintiff relied upon defendants’ promise(s) and at all times was ready, willing
and able to perform her duties and obligations under the contract.

84. Defendants breached its duty and obligation to perform in that it caused the
termination of plaintiff from its employ in violation of plaintiff’s rights.

85. Plaintiff substantially relied upon the promises of defendants to his detriment.

86. As a result of the conduct of defendants, jointly and severally, plaintiff has
suffered damages.

WHEREFORE, plaintiff demand judgment against the defendants named herein jointly and
severally on the Ninth Count of this Complaint as follows:
a. for an order awarding pecuniary damages, together with prejudgment interest at
the highest legal rate;
b. for an order awarding damages for pain and suffering, together with prejudgment
interest at the highest legal rate;
c. for an order awarding compensatory damages in the amount of $5 million, jointly

and severally, including but not limited to back pay and front pay together with prejudgment

interest at the highest legal rate;
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d. for an order awarding punitive, exemplary and/or special damages;

e. for an order awarding reimbursement of litigation expenses, including but not
limited to reasonable attorney’s fees, expert fees and other costs of suit; and

f.  for an order awarding such other and further relief as this Court may deem

equitable and just.

THIRTEENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
BREACH OF THE IMPLIED COVENANT OF GOOD FAITH AND FAIR DEALING

87. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein the above paragraphs.

88. Defendants were bound to act appropriately towards plaintiff pursuant to an implied
covenant of good faith and fair dealing which existed between plaintiff and defendants, and
plaintiff was legally entitled to rely thereon.

89. As a result of the conduct of defendants, jointly and severally, plaintiff has
suffered damages.

WHEREFORE, plaintiff demand judgment against the defendants named herein jointly and

severally on the Tenth Count of this Complaint as follows:

a. for an order awarding pecuniary damages, together with prejudgment interest at
the highest legal rate;

b. for an order awarding damages for pain and suffering, together with prejudgment
interest at the highest legal rate;

c. for an order awarding compensatory damages in the amount of $5 million, jointly
and severally, including but not limited to back pay and front pay together with prejudgment

interest at the highest legal rate;
d. for an order awarding punitive, exemplary and/or special damages;

e. for an order awarding reimbursement of litigation expenses, including but not
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limited to reasonable attorney’s fees, expert fees and other costs of suit; and

f. for an order awarding such other and further relief as this Court may deem

equitable and just.

FOURTEENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
DEFAMATION/DEFAMATION PER SE

90. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein the above paragraphs.

91. On several occasions defendants and/or their representatives told a series of
untruths, with knowledge of the falsity or reckless disregard for the truth to several of the
employees and/or outsiders.

92. The defamatory statements were intended to impeach plaintiff’s honesty, integrity,
virtue and/or personal or business reputation.

93. As a direct and proximate cause of the actions of defendant, plaintiff has suffered
mental anguish, physical discomfort, pain and suffering, shame and embarrassment and/or
aggravation of a previously existing mental or emotional condition. Furthermore, plaintiff has
suffered lost wages, a diminished capacity to earn a living and a diminished capacity to enjoy her
life. Moreover, plaintiff has and/or may be required to incur expenses for medical, psychiatric
and/or psychological counseling and care. Plaintiff’s damages have been experienced in the past
and they will continue in the future.

WHEREFORE, plaintiff demand judgment against the defendants named herein jointly and
severally on the Eleventh Count of this Complaint as follows:
a. for an order awarding pecuniary damages, together with prejudgment interest at

the highest legal rate;

b. for an order awarding damages for pain and suffering, together with prejudgment

interest at the highest legal rate;
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¢. for an order awarding compensatory damages in the amount of $5 million, jointly
and severally, including but not limited to back pay and front pay together with prejudgment
interest at the highest legal rate;

d. for an order awarding punitive, exemplary and/or special damages;

e. for an order awarding reimbursement of litigation expenses, including but not
limited to reasonable attorney’s fees, expert fees and other costs of suit; and

f.  for an order awarding such other and further relief as this Court may deem

equitable and just.

FIFTEENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
ASSAULT & BATTERY

94. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein the above paragraphs.

95. By the aforementioned actions, the defendant(s) did inflict assault and battery
upon the Plaintiff. The acts and conduct of the defendant(s) were the direct and proximate cause
of injury and damage to the Plaintiff and violated his statutory and common law rights as
guaranteed by the laws and Constitution of the State of New Jersey.

96. As a direct and proximate cause of the actions of defendant, plaintiff has suffered
mental anguish, physical discomfort, pain and suffering, shame and embarrassment and/or
aggravation of a previously existing mental or emotional condition. Furthermore, plaintiff has
suffered lost wages, a diminished capacity to earn a living and a diminished capacity to enjoy her
life. Moreover, plaintiff has and/or may be required to incur expenses for medical, psychiatric
and/or psychological counseling and care. Plaintiff’s damages have been experienced in the past
and they will continue in the future.

WHEREFORE, plaintiff demand judgment against the defendants named herein jointly and

severally on the Twelfth Count of this Complaint as follows:
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a. for an order awarding pecuniary damages, together with prejudgment interest at
the highest legal rate;

b. for an order awarding damages for pain and suffering, together with prejudgment
interest at the highest legal rate;

¢. for an order awarding compensatory damages in the amount of $5 million, jointly
and severally, including but not limited to back pay and front pay together with prejudgment
interest at the highest legal rate;

d. for an order awarding punitive, exemplary and/or special damages;

e. for an order awarding reimbursement of litigation expenses, including but not
limited to reasonable attorney’s fees, expert fees and other costs of suit; and

f. for an order awarding such other and further relief as this Court may deem

equitable and just.

SIXTEENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
NEW JERSEY LAD - RETALIATION

97. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates herein the above paragraphs.

98. The foregoing facts and circumstances demonstrate that defendants have violated the
New Jersey Law Against Discrimination, N.J.S.A. 10:5-1 et seq. by retaliating against plaintiff
because plaintiff reported illegal and/or wrongful activity. The defendants’ actions increased
and/or retaliatory action was taken against the plaintiff as a result.

99. Furthermore, upon information and belief, defendants have engaged in a pattern and

practice of such harassment.

100. The defendants named herein are liable for the retaliatory conduct under the

common law
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principles of respondeat superior as well as case law holding employers responsible in situations
when incidents of retaliation are known to occur and the employer fails to take remedial action.

101. As a direct and proximate cause of the actions of defendant, plaintiff has suffered

mental
anguish, physical discomfort, pain and suffering, shame and embarrassment and/or aggravation
of a previously existing mental or emotional condition. Furthermore, plaintiff has suffered lost
wages, a diminished capacity to earn a living and a diminished capacity to enjoy his life.
Moreover, plaintiff has and/or may be required to incur expenses for medical, psychiatric and/or
psychological counseling and care. Plaintiff’s damages have been experienced in the past and
they will continue in the future.
WHEREFORE, plaintiff demands judgment against the defendants named herein jointly

and severally on the First Count of this Complaint as follows:

a. for an order awarding pecuniary damages, together with prejudgment interest at
the highest legal rate;

b. for an order awarding damages for pain and suffering, together with prejudgment
interest at the highest legal rate;

c. for an order awarding compensatory damages in the amount of $5 million, jointly
and severally, including but not limited to back pay and front pay together with prejudgment
interest at the highest legal rate;

d. for an order awarding punitive, exemplary and/or special damages;

e. for an order awarding reimbursement of litigation expenses, including but not
limited to reasonable attorney’s fees, expert fees and other costs of suit; and

f.  for an order awarding such other and further relief as this Court may deem

equitable and just.
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FISHER, BYRIALSEN & KREIZER, PLLC
Attorneys for Plaintiff

Dated: %\\3\\’5 - @ /[}—-—-__.___

ViD P. KREIZER]P ESQ.

JURY DEMAND

Plaintiff hereby demands a trial by jury as on all issues herein presented.

FISHER, BYRIALSEN & KREIZER, PLLC
Aftorne Plaintiff

Dated: <L\\‘2_,\\‘5 By; .0 47 4/ :

AVID P. KREIZER, £SQ.

DESIGNATION OF TRIAL COUNSEL

Attorney David P. Kreizer, Esq., of the Law Offices of Fisher, Byrialsen & Kreizer,

PLEC is hereby designated as trial counsel.

FISHER, BYRIALSEN & KREIZER, PLLC
Attorneys for Plaintiff

Dated: Q\\g\\g By @/(/ —

AVID P. KREIZER,|ESQ.

CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that the matter in controversy is also the subject of the following action:

In Re Robert Connizzo - Preliminary Notice of Disciplinary Action

I further certify that there is/are no other parties who should be joined in the within

action.
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FISHER, BYRIALSEN & KREIZER, PLLC
Attorneys for Plaintiff

Dated: QQ \5\\2 By; 04/

ID P. KREIZER ESQ






